Sego®Soft



SegoSoft[®] Process Documentation

User Manual

SegoSoft Version 7
with SegoAssurance Module 1.2





Messtechnik GmbH www.comcotec.de

info@segosoft.info

Table of contents

1 Important Information for Users	4
2 System requirements	8
2.1 Network	8
3 User interface	8
3.1 The menu	9
3.1.1 "File" menu: 3.1.2 "Edit" menu:	10 11
3.1.3 "View" menu:	
3.1.4 "Archive" menu: 3.1.5 Context menu "Devices" (with the right mouse button in the devices window):	11
3.1.6 "Tools" menu:	
2.2. Departies her	
3.2 Function bar.	
3.3.1 Overview of windows	
3.3.2 Record window.	
3.3.4 Devices window	
3.3.5 Messages window	42
3.4 Status bar	
4 Maintenance information	
4.1 Creating maintenance information form	42
4.2 Reminder window for services	44
4.3 Acknowledging the service (release window)	45
5 Routine testing	45
5.1 Daily routine testing	
6.1 Batch-based routine testing	
7 Release	56
7.1 Release dialogue window	
8 Laber print	
8.1 Barcode label	59
8.2 Label print dialogue	59
8.3 Settings dialogue	
8.4 Functions of the settings dialogue	60
8.5 Label reprint	61
9 Archive	61
10 Authentication	62
10.1 Session-oriented log-in	62

10.2 Changing the password	63
11 Annex	63
11.1 Checking the signature of the release document	
11.1.1 Before the first signature check	
Import of a trusted certificate	63
11.1.2 Checking the signature	
11 Manufacturer information	70
12 Obligation to report	71

1 Important Information for Users

Responsibilities:

The head / operator of the facility is responsible for traceable documentation of instrument preparation. This person decides how records are kept and how much is recorded. The settings in SegoSoft^{® 1)}are standardised and the operator must set and adjust these to meet the needs and requirements of the facility. Only when used in this way can SegoSoft afford protection from legal liability risks.

Purpose

The Segosoft program is designed to prevent disease and infection by monitoring and supporting the preparation process of invasive and non-invasive medical devices.

Process validation:

Process validation is explicitly required in QM systems (DIN EN ISO 9001, DIN EN ISO 13485:, GMP, DIN EN ISO 15189), in the guidelines of the German Medical Association (RiliBÄK:2008) and in the German Medical Devices Operator Ordinance (MPBetreibV:). It includes preparation of documentary confirmation that a process will always create a result or product which conforms to the set requirements. As part of the legally stipulated process validation the following qualifications are specified for SegoSoft:

Installation Qualification (IQ), Design Qualification (DQ), Operational Qualification (OQ), Performance Qualification (PQ), Maintenance Qualification (MQ).

Comcotec can provide assistance creating those documents. Reference to standards, directives and ordinances in their respective valid versions.

Professional competence of personnel

Under the terms of section 2 of health and safety regulations in health services [§ 2 UVV "Gesundheitsdienst" (VBG 103)], only persons

with professional training in health or

who are trained and supervised by a technically competent person

should be appointed to perform disinfection duties.

Persons who have the appropriate training and experience to detect

(infection) hazards and can take action to avert them are considered technically competent. Disinfection tasks include planning the work as well as

conducting it.

For example, the technical competency required for planning disinfection tasks can be expected:

- in the hospital, e.g. hospital hygienist, doctor with hygienist duties or specialist hygienist,

- doctors in public health,

– in medical practices, veterinary practices, practice manager. The technical qualifications required for performing disinfections can, for example,

be expected with:

- certified disinfection technicians,

- trained hygiene technicians,

1) SegoSoft is a registered trademark of Comcotec Messtechnik GmbH

Device drivers

Selecting the **right** device driver is a key factor for trouble-free and correct recording of process data by SegoSoft. The user is required to input the exact information for the device manufacturer and device type when setting up the device.

Release dialogue users:

Only persons who because of their training and occupation have the necessary specialist knowledge (qualified person) may be appointed.

Security functions:

The release decision made by a user is documented in the SegoAssurance module of the SegoSoft process documentation, where a PDF document that records the release by the user is generated and saved with a digital signature. This process uses the certificate assigned specifically to the user. The release decision by the user can be checked with Adobe Reader by comparing the data of the certificate with certificate data generated by SegoAssurance.

The most important security features of the SegoAssurance module are the

1. creation of a unique user certificate based on ITU-T Standard X.509 Version 3

2. documentation of the release decision with an advanced electronic signature

Correct use:

SegoSoft is a modern process documentation system for medical and laboratory applications that is independent of device manufacturers. All relevant parameters and data from cleaning, disinfection and sterilisation are recorded in a seamless documentation trail. The purpose of process documentation is the collection and administration of data sent to the system by external devices, referred to as end devices. The primary goal here is to ensure the highest level of data security and an easily navigated archive of the collected data. SegoSoft is designed for fully automatic documentation of the automatic processing mechanism. The operator is legally covered by the use of the prescribed SegoSoft version (e.g.: FDA user).



SegoSoft is not intended for optimising processes or process parameters of the attached medical devices.

Every change to processes or process parameters requires a new validation of the complete process.

Maintanance Qualifikation

Contains the documentary confirmation of regular main-tenance. Description of all the necessary cle-aning, maintenance and servicing measures.

Validity of digital signatures:

The coding algorithms must be renewed every two years to eliminate as far as possible the risk of the signed data failing to comply with legal requirements. If you have any questions, please contact our support staff. Use our Service Card and enjoy a range of services (telephone support, free product updates and free update of the digital signature).

Overview of functions

The software is used with the process of preparation of medical devices. It includes the following major functions:

- Fully automatic documentation of the automatic preparation process by recording data (e.g. temperature, pressure, contact pressure) from device interfaces (washer disinfectors (WD), sterilisers) and converting the data into a format that the user of the software can read,
- Consideration of the validation values of the respective instruments by taking the calibration is taken into account within the scope of a software validation (The validation of the reprocessing process by the user is required by MPBetreibV §8 prescribed by law)
- Confirmation that the data imported via the interface actually originate from the connected device,
- Calculation of various preparation parameters, such as A0 value, saturated steam temperature,
- Display of chart showing overlapping curves of actual and setpoint values,
- Visualisation and documentation of the preparation process in real time.
- View of process for the release decision during preparation,
- Calculation of an expiry date for the sterile instruments according to the the setting of the reprocessing staff (default setting: 180 days)
- Labelling of sterile stored instruments with expiry date, batch number and sterilisation programme name.
 Legal confirmation recorded by electronic signature. Menu-controlled operation
- Legal confirmation recorded by electronic signature. Menu-controlled operation and archiving of relevant data after assessment and release by the technician, including confirmation of identity.
- Long-term archiving of documents with prevention of unauthorised changes.

Verification window

The verification window opens automatically opened immediately after starting SegoSoft. The user receives information on the security status of the practice and user certificates and the activation status of the preparation devices.

Maintenance			
[03:27:02] Communication with the Comcotec-Server is starting [03:27:02] Check up is starting [03:27:06] Common Criteria compliant. [03:27:06] Il Please check your company certificate I [03:27:06] Il Please check your company certificate I [03:27:06] Il Traid period endo in 27 day(s) for device Comcotec GmbH - Demo Generic - 1.0 I [03:27:06] Check up completed. [
UUS27/UBJ Communication with the Composed-Server completed.			
The legal security is not guaranteed.			
SEGO° SOFT Process Documentation			
Next > Cancel Help			

For example, if the digital signature has expired, **"Contact your software support! "** appears in the verification window

By selecting the checkbox

"The legal security is not guaranteed" the user confirms that the information has been read.



If, despite the warning

"The legal security is not guaranteed."

other recordings are started, the process data will continue to be recorded. However, the data can no longer be released in accordance with legal requirements.

To ensure the legal security of the process data the encryption algorithms of the digital signature must be renewed.

Please "Contact your software support!"

Maintenance information:

The head / operator of the facility is responsible for the maintenance information for the various preparation devices in SegoSoft. The maintenance intervals specified by the manufacturer must be observed.

Styles in the SegoSoft user manual:

Menu commands are printed in bold separated by "/". For example "File/Open" refers to the Open command in the File menu.

The contents of a dialogue window are also printed in bold. E.g.: "Select a file name in

the list and click OK".

Keys are printed in block letters, e.g.: "ENTER". Key combinations such as ALT+F mean that the F and ALT keys must be pressed simultaneously.

CE mark



cc f 0123 This product has a CE mark in accordance with the requirements certification office.

2 System requirements

SegoSoft is designed to run on standard personal computers. The specified configurations have been tested on a number of different systems.

The current system requirements can be viewed at:

https://www.segosoft.info



The system performance for SegoSoft should exceed the recommended minimum depending on the number and type of connected devices. This will ensure trouble-free operation.

2.1 Network

A functional network is required to record a medical device on he network. Consult your IT person to clarify the current status of the network.

3 User interface

SegoSoft operates in a similar fashion to standard Windows programs with a standard Windows interface.

Title bar

The top row of all programs shows the title of the program, e.g. **'SegoSoft**", the current status of the sterilisation or disinfection process, e.g. **'SegoSoft** [Record

 Recording - Pretreatment]", and the location of the program. For example, if the window for records

in the archive is open to its maximum size, the title bar shows "SegoSoft [Records]".

SegoSoft - [Record: Comcotec Ste	erilizer - Cycle complete	ed]									
File Edit View Archive Ext	tras Window ?										- E X
	20	2				Title	bor				
Overview ×	Chart Report			Menu		The	Dai		Information		*
Comcotec Sterilizer - Cycle compl	or +							↑ b₽s	Device Name	Comcotec Sterilizer	
	160.0								Туре	Demo Generic	
	450.0							3800	Location		
	160.0	Equation b	or					3600	Device ID	S7334	
	140.0	FONCTION	ai					3400	Cycle	2365	
	130.0	·····						3200	Device category	Demo	
	120.0		1					3000	Display		
	110.0		/		/			2800	Chart		=
		AUA(V' .	¥	}				2600	Background	color	
Over	اممانين مقربين مرا							2400	Foreground o	olor 📕	
Overwi	lew of wind	ows		Reco	rd windo	MA 0	<u>^</u>	2200	Grid color		
				Neco		vv	$\sim -f \chi$	2000	Process data		
	70.0						X{X	1800	Begin	Devices	- attinga
	60.0	$\lambda $						1600	End	Devices	seuings
	50.0	• VA A M •					N	1400	Duration		
	N N			4				1200	State	Lycle completed	
	40.0			1	\cap	\cap	\cap	1000	Charge No.	D000012	
	30.0			*****				800	Program	P1 134° Feste Güter	
	20.0				···· { ··· { ··· { ··· {			400	± Sensors		
	10.0	, ∮↓-∳-⊹					····	200	User defined	fields	
									Sterilization mate	stal. Semicritical A/B	
< · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	08:02:30 08:12	2:30 08:22:30 08:	32:30 08	:42:30 08:52:30	09:02:30	09:12:30	09:22:30	,.	Process Indicato	N UK	
									J I reatment Indica	ator IUK.	
* Device Name	Manufacturer	Туре	State	Location	Device ID	Cycle	Enabled	Device categ	 [09:38:27] Datab [09:38:27] [C:\Pri 	ase opened. ogramData\Comcotec\Sego\Sego	a.vdb)
Somcotec Thermodesinfector	Comcotec GmbH	Sego Sensor Module	Ready				Yes	Sensor	[09:38:37] Ready	to go !!	
Sa Comcotec Sterilizer	Comcotec GmbH	Demo Generic	Ready		\$7334	2365	Yes	Demo	[03:36:37] Please	e start working !	
🔛 Comcotec Sego Sensor TD	Comcotec GmbH	Sego Sensor Module TD	Ready				Yes	Sensor			-
				— ·					Mes	saae window	
				Devices	window	/			10	3	
🧃 🚽 Status b	ar								age		<u> </u>
									less		
								•	2		
Ready										Comcotec Messtech	NUM

3.1 The menu

File	Edit	View	Archive	Extras	Window	2
1 U Sec. 1	L MILL	8.127.8.8	ALC: UNK	LANCE MADE	A A DELIGIONAL	

The menu commands are sorted by functional groups. As soon as a separate window is opened to run a menu command, additional commands for further processing appear e.g. **"Archive/Records"**, the command **"Window**" also appears.

3.1.1 "File" menu:



"File/Open"

Previously saved records can be opened in a dialogue window.

"File/Print Setup"

The connected printer can be set up in a dialogue window. Settings for printing out to paper can be selected here specifically for SegoSoft.

SegoSoft Settings	
Color printing	
 ✓ Line chart ✓ Report ✓ User defined fields ✓ Measured value 	✓ Protocols es ✓ Information

The selected printer settings are listed in the device settings window of the specific preparation device in the **Output/Printer** folder.

"File/Recent File"

When SegoSoft is used for the first time, this command is greyed-out; at all other times a list of the recently opened files is displayed.

"File/Log out"

The user identified by password (password and user name prompt) can log out with this command. The user status is shown in the status bar (bottom right).

This command closes SegoSoft.

89 S	egoSoft		A REAL PROPERTY AND INCOME.
File	Edit View	Archive	Extras ?
	Cut	Ctrl+X	
	Сору	Ctrl+C	
	Insert	Ctrl+V	x
	Select all	Ctrl+A	

3.1.2 "Edit" menu:

The commands "Edit/Cut", "Edit/Copy", "Edit/Paste" are available depending on the connected device type (e.g. steriliser). Additional functions such as "Edit/Graph", "Edit/Record" and "Edit/Select all" are also available depending on the main window.

"Edit/Select all"

All contents of the open window are selected.

The available **edit menu commands** can also be opened by selecting the device (e.g. steriliser) in the device window with the right mouse button and using the context menu.

"Edit/Record"

In this menu a completed record of a device can be released, a record of a sealing device can be closed or the record can be checked for changes.

3.1.3 "View" menu:



The default setting for the screen display of SegoSoft is set to show all available views. The screen views can be activated or deactivated by selection with the mouse. The reset function can be used to reset the view settings to the default settings.

3.1.4 "Archive" menu:



"Archive/Records"

A separate window **[Records]** is opened showing the process data records of all connected devices in table form.

(Start, End, Duration, Status, Batch no., Program, Manufacturer number, Cycle counter, Device name, Company, Type, Process evaluation, Product release, Released by, Released on) Context menu selected by right mouse button in the records window

Save as	
Copy	
Display	
Configure columns	
Collate	
Set filter	F3
Reset filter	
Refresh	F5
Select all	Ctrl+A

"Edit/Records/Configure columns" or context menu with right mouse button "Configure columns"

Columns
Visible Invisible Begin >> End Duration State Charge No. Program Device ID Cycle Device Name Manufacturer Type Process evaluation Product release Released at
Cancel OK

A separate window **[Columns]** opens. The table header for the process-data records in the separate window **[Records]** can be changed with the buttons. The order of the preset criteria (Start, End, Duration, Status, Batch no., Program, Manufacturer number, Cycle counter, Device name, Company, Type, Process evaluation, Product release, Released by, Released on) and the selection criteria entered by the user can be changed and displayed or hidden.

"Edit/Records/Records/Collate" or context menu with right mouse button "Collate"

Charge No.	 Offsored Begin End Duration State Program Manufacturer Type Process evaluation Process evaluation Process evaluation Process evaluation Process evaluation Device ID Cycle
Direction Ascending Descending	

A separate window **[Collate]** opens. The criteria for the table in the separate window **[Records]** can be sorted in ascending or descending order with the buttons.

The sort function can also be set by clicking the required sort criterion with the mouse in the table header in the separate window [Records].

"Edit/Records/Search (Set filter)" or context menu with right mouse button "Search (set filter) "

Columns Begin	Values Filter off
Jegan Duration State Charge No. Program Device ID Cycle Device Name Manufacturer Type Process evaluation Process evaluation Process evaluation	Actual value Input Range
neiedseu al	

A separate window [Filter] opens. A special

search in the records can be started with the criteria in the process-data table displayed in the "Columns" field.

Several criteria can be applied to the search.

er		×	For example, if the search is for
Columns Pegin End Duration State Charge No. Program Device ID Cycle Device Name Manufacturer Type Process evaluation Product release Released by Released at	Values Filter off Actual value Input Input<th></th><th>process data of a device with a known Manufacturer number within a specific period that were released by a specific person, the following filters are set. "Manufacturer number" - activate input - enter manufacturer number, "Released by" - activate input - Enter name of person who released it, "Start" - activate range – enter searched time interval from to (DD.MM.YYYY hh:mm:ss)</th>		process data of a device with a known Manufacturer number within a specific period that were released by a specific person , the following filters are set. "Manufacturer number" - activate input - enter manufacturer number, "Released by" - activate input - Enter name of person who released it, "Start" - activate range – enter searched time interval from to (DD.MM.YYYY hh:mm:ss)
	Cancel	ОК	The filters are marked with an asterisk in the "Columns " field.

The displayed entries of the remaining process-data table correspond to the inputs of the defined filters. When the "Edit/Records/Search (Set filter)" search function is opened again, the separate window [Filter] opens with the entries of the set filter. This allows the user to check which search has been started. New filters for the search can also be inserted.

"Edit/Records/Records/Reset filter" or context menu with right mouse button "Reset filter" The entries of the set filter are deleted and the complete process-data table is displayed again. "Edit/Records/Records/Label printing" or context menu with right mouse button "Label printing"

The prior marking of a released record with a positive product release is followed by printout or reprint of a label, if the technical requirements have been met.

"Edit/Records/Refresh" or context menu with right mouse button "Refresh" The view of the separate window **[Records]** is refreshed. This function is also called by pressing F5.

"Archive/PDF Archive"

C

A separate window **[PDF Archive]** is opened showing the process data records of all connected devices in PDF format.(Start, End, Duration, Status, Batch no., Program, Manufacturer number, Cycle counter, Device name, Company, Type, Process evaluation, Product release, Released by, Released on). The number of criteria in the process-data table depends on the prior configuration of the columns.

Context menu selected by right mouse button in the PDF Archive window

Copy Display Configure columns Collate		
Set filter Reset filter	F3	
Refresh	F5	
Select all	Ctrl+A	
imns		
Visible Begin End Duration State Charge No. Program Device ID Cycle Device Name Manufacturer	<	
Type Process evaluation Product release Released by Released at		
	∧ V	
		Cancel OK

by, Released on) and the criteria entered by the user can be changed and displayed or hidden. 'Edit/PDF/Configure columns" or context menu with right mouse button "Configure columns"

> A separate window **[Columns]** opens. The table header for the process-data records in the separate window **[PDF**

> **Archive]** can be changed with the buttons. The order of the preset criteria (Start, End, Duration, Status, Batch no., Program, Manufacturer number, Cycle counter, Device name, Company, Type, Process evaluation,Product release, Released

"Edit/PDF/Collate " or context menu with right mouse button "Collate"

Sorted	Unsorted
Charge No.	Begin End Duration State Program Device Name Manufacturer Type Process evaluation Product release Released at Device ID V
Direction O Ascending	
Descending	

A separate window **[Collate]** opens. The criteria for the table in the separate window **[PDF Archive]** can be sorted in ascending or descending order with the buttons. The number of sort criteria in the process-data table depends on the prior configuration of the columns.

The sort function can also be set by clicking the required sort criterion with the mouse in the table header in the **[PDF Archive]** window.

"Edit/PDF/Search (Set filter)" or context menu with right mouse button "Search (set filter)"

Columns	Values
Begin End	Filter off
Duration State	Actual value
Charge No. Program	
Device ID Cucle	
Device Name	
Manufacturer Type	Panao
Process evaluation Product release	
Released at	

A separate window **[Filter]** opens. A special search in the records of the PDF archive can be started with the criteria in the process-data table displayed in the **"Columns"** field.

Several criteria can be applied to the search.

er Columns End Duration State Charge No. Program Device ID Cycle Device Name Manufacturer	Values Filter off Actual value Input
Type Process evaluation Product release Released by Released at	Range 01.06.2015 00:00:00 02.06.2015 00:00:00
	Cancel

For example, if the search is for process data of a device with a known **Manufacturer number** within a specific **period** that were **released by a specific person**, the following filters are set.

"Manufacturer number" - activate input - enter manufacturer number, "Released by" - activate input -Enter name of person who released it, "Start" - activate range – enter searched time interval from to (DD.MM.YYYY hh:mm:ss)

The filters are marked with an asterisk in the **"Columns**" field.

The displayed entries of the remaining process-data table correspond to the inputs of the defined filters. When the "Edit/PDF/Search (Set filter)" search function is opened again, a separate window [Filter] opens with the entries of the set filter. This allows the user to check which search has been started. New filters for the search can also be inserted.

"Edit/PDF/Reset filter" or context menu with right mouse button "Reset filter" The entries of the set filter are deleted and the complete process-data table of the PDF archive is displayed again.

"Edit/PDF/Label printing " or context menu with right mouse button "Label printing" The prior marking of a released record with a positive product release is followed by printout or reprint of a label, if the technical requirements have been met.

"Edit/PDF/Refresh" or context menu with right mouse button "Refresh" The view of the separate window **[PDF]** is refreshed. This function is also called by pressing F5.

"Archive/Audit trail"

A separate **[Audit trail]** window is opened with a protocol of all completed and interrupted processes in table form (secured to prevent manipulation). (Date, Type, Action, Description, User, Remark).

"Edit/Audit trail/Remarks "

Precondition for activating the command: The user must have the corresponding group rights, must be logged in and must have selected an entry in the list. An **"Audit details"** dialogue window shows the **"Remarks**" field, in which additional information can be recorded.

Date	Туре	
02/06/2015 04:22:01	Records - Create	OK
Description		Cancel
Comcotec Sterilisator - S73	334 - 2365 - Cycle completed	
Remark		
		Edit

3.1.5 Context menu "Devices" (with the right mouse button in the devices windo	w):

Connect

Precondition for activating the command: The device listed in the devices window (e.g. steriliser) must be marked. The device (e.g. steriliser) is connected to SegoSoft. The connection status to SegoSoft is shown in the devices window in the details view

("Devices/Details").

"Disconnect"

Precondition for activating the command: The device in the devices window (e.g. steriliser) that is to be disconnected from SegoSoft must be marked.

The marked device (e.g. steriliser) will be disconnected from SegoSoft. The connection status to SegoSoft is shown in the devices window in the details view ("Details").

"Sorting"

The devices listed in the devices window can be sorted alphabetically in a submenu by the following criteria. (Device name, Company, Type, Status und Location). An arrow is shown in the selected column description. Click on the arrow to sort in the reverse order (Z-A).

The sort function can also be set to the require sort type by clicking in the devices window with the mouse.

"Archive"

Precondition for activating the command: A device in the devices window (e.g. steriliser) must be marked.

"Archive/Records": A separate window [Records] is opened showing the process data records of the marked device in table form.

"Archive/PDF" A separate window [PDF Archive] is opened showing the process data records of the marked device in PDF format.

"Devices/Details"

The specified devices are listed in the devices window by the following items: (Device name, Company, Type, Status, Location, Manufacturer number, Cycle count, Activated).

"Devices/Large icons"

The specified devices are listed as icons in the devices window.

3.1.6 "Tools" menu:



"Tools/Settings"

A separate window [Settings] opens. With the corresponding group rights the "General", "Devices", "Release", "System", "Interface" and "Network" functions can be edited.

General:

The station name appears in the title bar.

	-	🎉 General
		Station name
		Instrument reprocessing, Room L042
- Release		
System		
Surface	=	
A Natural		
A Network		
- Waster data		
Service Card		
Company		
Users		
🎢 Groups		
Audit trail		

Devices:



Automatic settings by SegoSoft. We recommend using the settings shown.



The head / operator of the facility is responsible for deactivation of the release (release upon completion of record).

Release:

	-	🎋 Release
General Devices Devices System Surface Network Master data Service Card	ш	Release P Release upon record completion Output P tops Print upon record completion Print upon record completion Settings Close window upon record completion
	Ŧ	

We recommend that you use the "**Release** on completion of record" setting. On completion of the preparation program the screen automatically displays the release dialogue window. This releases the device almost immediately.

For long-term archiving the setting "Create PDF upon completion of record" is recommended.

System:



SegoSoft files on the computer are opened automatically in the SegoSoft program by double-clicking the left mouse button. We recommend that you use the "Link SegoSoft/Variosoft files with the program" setting.

Interface:

In the "Interface" the colours for the "Product release issued" and "Product release not granted" entries are selected.

Colour selection: Left click on the coloured box to open a separate selection window.

The process-data table in the archive (records and PDF) are blue if product release is issued and red if release is not granted.

The "Release issued" and "Release not



granted" text in the release dialogue is also correspondingly coloured.

Network:



An automatic backup of the files generated by SegoSoft is created via the "**Network**" tab. The file backup can be on a server (recommended) or on an external storage medium. The condition for this is that the field "**Copy files to**" is marked and the location for the backup copy is set up via the directory.

If the network is temporarily interrupted during the backup process, SegoSoft backs up the newly generated files by a regular prompt after the network connection has been restored.

"Master data"

In the Master data tree structure the "Service card", "Company data", "Users", "Groups", "Audit trail", "Settings" and "Licences" items can be opened. Changes can also be made subject to the corresponding group rights.



If the company name is changed, the SegoSoft certificate must be renewed.

Service card: Displays the service-card number recorded at installation. More detailed information on entering data and the Automatic configuration, Request clearing, Carry out release functions are described in the Installation and Administration Manual.

	^	% Se	rvice C	ard		
		SC	80817	- F3U		Automatic Configuration
Master data						Request Clearing
						Clearing
	E					
Settings Settings Settings Settings Settings						
Market Sterilisator						
SegoLabel						

Company data:Displays the company data that was entered at installation. The company data are shown in the record documentation and the electronically signed PDF documents. The "Valid" status is based on the digital signature created at release. No other certificate status is permitted for correct use.

More detailed information on entering data and the **Request clearing** and **Carry out release** functions are described in the **Installation and Administration Manual**.

Settings		×	Company		
			Company		Display
			Name	Comcotec Messtechnik GmbH.	certificate
al pi			Street	Gutenbergstr. 3	_
- Release			Zip	85716	Request
	E		City	Unterschleißheim	Clearing
Surface			Country	Germany (DE)	
3.0		1	Remark	8	Perform
Network			Certificate		Cleaning
🕬 🎢 Master data			State	Valid	
Service Card					
Company					
Users					
Groups					
a cicups					
Audit trail	-				

Display company data/certificate

Opens a separate window in which the certificate data can be viewed.

Certificate								
General Details Certification Path								
Certificate Information								
This certificate is intended for the following purpose(s): • All application policies								
Issued to: Comcotec Messtechnik GmbH Certificate								
Issued by: Comcotec SegoSoft Generic Version (2013)								
Valid from 5/ 28/ 2015 to 5/ 28/ 2017								
Install Certificate Issuer Statement Learn more about certificates								
ОК								

Users: Shows the current users. The subsequent execution of functions in the program depends on the selected group when the user was created.

Settings						×
Settings	-	×	Users			
General			First name	Specimen	^(New
			Last name	Lamine		
💥 Release			Title			Delete
System			Position			Print
3.4 a c			Group	Administration		
Surface	-		Change Password	V		Display
	=		Certificate		-	certificate
🖃 🛶 🐝 Master data			State	Valid	Ξ	
			User			
Service Card			First name	Specimen		
Company			Last name	Olivia		
S Users			Title			
34			Position		-	
Groups			Group	Uperators	_	
			Change Password	1		
Settings			Certificate		Ŧ	
Licenser						
	-					
			OK	Cancel Apply		Help
			OK	- Apply		, nop

"Users/New"

Precondition for activating the command: The user must have corresponding group rights, must be logged in and the "**Master data/Users**" tree structure must be selected. When the "**New**" function is selected the input fields for adding a new user are displayed.

First name, last name and group are mandatory fields. Title and position can be used to show the role of the user. After completing the input fields, the information is saved with **"Accept"** and a dialogue opens to prompt the input of a password for the user. After entering the password, a certificate (electronic signature) is generated for the user and the status of the certificate is displayed in the user status. The new user now has a unique user certificate as identification and can administer the hygiene documentation in accordance with the rights assigned to the user.

"Users/Delete"

Precondition for activating the command: The user must have corresponding group rights, must be logged in and the "**Master data/Users**" tree structure must be selected. Selection of the "**Delete**" function deletes the selected user. Deletion of a user has no effect on the records documents.

"Users/Print"

Once the certificate has been generated the signature verification key of the certificate should be printed out along with a training form.

"Users/Display certificate"

Opens a separate window in which the certificate data of the user can be viewed.

Certificate
General Details Certification Path
Certificate Information
This certificate is intended for the following purpose(s): All application policies
Issued to: Lamine Specimen
Issued by: Comcotec Messtechnik GmbH Certificate
Valid from 6/ 2/ 2015 to 5/ 28/ 2017
Install Certificate Issuer Statement
ОК

An accredited signature can be imported into SegoSoft with "Install certificate".

More detailed information on editing user data is described in the **Installation and** Administration Manual.

Groups:Displays the groups and rights set up at installation. The assignment of a group to a user controls the user's authorisation for executing functions in the program.

Settings							×
🖃 🎢 Settings	-	3	ß	Groups			
🧩 General		1	-	Group	dancod 🖂	-	New
				Group name	Administration		Delete
			-	Rights			Delete
			-	User settings			
Surface				Edit Service Card	Yes		
Network				F dit	Yes	_	
Master data			-	Labels		_	
	=			Reprint	Yes		
Service Card			-	Company			
Company				Edit	Yes	=	
Users				Link Create	Yes		
Groups				Edit	Yes	_	
🐝 Audit trail				Delete	Yes		
Settings			-	Licenses		_	
Licenses				Edit	Yes		
Devices		1		options			
Comcotec Sterilisator	-						
				ОК	Cancel Apply		Help

"Groups/New"

Precondition for activating the command: The user must have corresponding group rights, must be logged in and the "**Master data/Groups**" tree structure must be selected. Selection of the "**New**" function adds a new group and details of the authorisations of the new group can be defined in the program.

"Groups/Delete"

Precondition for activating the command: The user must have corresponding group rights, must be logged in and the "**Master data/Groups**" tree structure must be selected. A selected group can be deleted with the "**Delete**" button. The default groups in the program cannot be deleted.

More detailed information on editing groups is described in the **Installation and** Administration Manual.

Audit trail: Shows which information is logged in the audit trail and will therefore be displayed when the audit trail view is opened.

Settings					<u> </u>	3
🖃 💥 Settings		¥	Audit trail			
		E	User settings			1İ
Devices			Edit	No		
Beleves		E	Service Card			
Kelease			Edit	No		
		E	Labels		=	
Surface			Reprint	No		
and Natural		E	Company			
Network			Edit	No		
🖮 🎢 Master data	Ξ	E	Link			
Service Card			Create	No		Ш
and Commonly			Edit	No		Ш
Company			Delete	No		Ш
		E	Licenses			Н
Sroups			Edit	No		Н
And it trail		E	Options			Ш
Addit trail			Edit	No		Ш
Settings		E	Groups			Ш
💥 Licenses			Create	No	-	
Devices			E D	N	÷	1
Comcotec Sterilisator	-					
			ОК	Cancel Apply H	lelp	

Settings: Shows the settings for using passwords and automatic log-out.

Settings	- 3	🐇 Settings		
General General Covices Release System System Surface Network Master data Service Card Company Users Groups Audit trail Settings Licenses Devices	E	Settings Password valid (days) Automatic logout (minutes) Min. pwd. length	0	
Comcotec Sterilisator	-	ОК	Cancel Apply	Help

Settings	00	LILCHISCS		
General		Licenses		Request
		Comcotec GmbH - Sego		Clearing
Release		Licenses (current)	1	
all -		Licenses (required)	1	Perform
System		Comcotec GmbH - Demo		Cleaning
Surface		Licenses (current)	1	
S Network		Licenses (required)	1	
- Service Card - Service Card				

Licences: Shows the licences for the devices configured in the program.

More detailed information on releasing new devices is described in the **Installation and Administration Manual**.

Renewing certificates after changing the company name



If the company name is changed, the company certificate must be renewed. This is done in *"Master data/Company data/Request release".*

E Settings		z	Company		
			Company		Display
			Name	Comcotec <mark>, M</mark> esstechnik GmbH.	certificate
Release			Street	Gutenbergstr. 3	
Release			Zip	85716	Request
System			City	Unterschleißheim	Clearing
Surface			Country	Germany (DE)	
A Natural			Remark		Clearing
INELWORK			Certificate		Cicaning
🗎 🦳 🎢 Master data	=		State	Name mismatch, Renewal needed	
Service Card					
and Commonly					1911
Company					
Users					
💥 Groups					
Audit trail					
Addit trail					
Settings					
Stress Licenses					
Devices					
a					
Comcotec Sterilisator	-				

For example: if the name of the company has been changed, the "**Company data**" tab shows under the status of the certificate the entry "**Name changed, renewal required**" and then also "**Signature invalid**".



Records for devices without a licence are documented for a short time only, which makes them legally invalid.

Run a release if the company name has been changed or for devices without a licence. See the Installation and Administration manual for the required procedure.

You will be able to renew the licences and certificates automatically.

"Tools/Shut down"



The head / operator of the facility is responsible for deactivation of the release dialogue window.

When this command is selected, SegoSoft shuts down the computer after the process of the device (e.g. steriliser) that is still in operation is finished. A checkmark is shown before the command as confirmation.

The release dialogue window must be deactivated before the computer can be shut down. This requires a disciplined user, because the last completed record must be manually released **first** on the following work day. The release dialogue window should also be reactivated.

In "Tools/Settings" " the "Release on completion of record" function and the "Output as PDF on completion of record" output can be deactivated with the corresponding group rights (password prompt) in the "Settings/Release" tree structure. The functions are also reactivated.

"Tools/Change password"

hange password	×
User	ОК
	Cancel
Administration	, iii

Common Name	Lamine Specimen	
Password		_
New password		Canc
Reentry Password		
vin. pwd. length: 6, Upp	per-case letters required, Lower-case	

This menu function is used to change user passwords. A user selection is opened first after selecting this menu entry. Then the dialogue for changing the password is opened. The user must first enter the old password and then the new password.

Vaintenance
[02:00:33] Communication with the Comcotec-Server is starting [02:00:33] Check up is starting [02:00:36] Common Criteria compliant. [02:00:36] Check up completed.
[02:00:36] Communication with the Comcotec-Server completed.
SEGO [®] SOFT
Process Documentation
<u> </u>
Finish Cancel Help

"Tools/Maintenance"

A maintenance dialogue can be opened with this function. When it is opened the software settings are checked and the result of the check is displayed.

"?"menu:



"?/Documentation"

The SegoSoft user manual is opened.

"?/Support tool"

This dialogue window can be used to contact Comcotec support over an internet connection. The support person can access your computer by remote service and assist with problems on the computer. This function can also be used for courses and presentations.

"?/About SegoSoft"

Shows the current version of SegoSoft and the service card number. It also shows the CE mark with the Notified Body, the IT security certificate of the German Federal Office for Information Security (BSI), and other certificates for the software.



3.2 Function bar



The function bar contains icons for the most important functions, which are thus always immediately available. All functions can also be reached from the menu.

3.3 SegoSoft windows

3.3.1 Overview of windows





The overview window shows the current status of current records or records opened for viewing. The colour shows whether the record is currently running, finished or has been released. The colours correspond to the settings made in "**Tools/Settings/Interface**". Finished records without release are displayed in black, current records are shown in grey. When multiple devices are in use, the window has an overview function, which can display all current devices and records and their status at a glance.

3.3.2 Record window

Open with: it opens automatically as soon it detects that a device program is running. It also opens if a saved record is opened from the archive.

"Chart" tab:

The record window consists of a curve section (left) and a data section (right).



In the **curve section** the measured values are shown as a graph. The x-axis shows the time. Depending on the connected device, the y-axis shows the temperature, e.g. in degrees Celsius (°C), and the chamber pressure, e.g. in hectopascals (hPa). The curves show the data transferred to in the program from the connected device and the sensors.

The **data section** lists information on the device, the display, the processing data, the sensors, the user-defined fields and the release status.



The colour of the sensor curve is changed in the "**Colour**" field. Click on the desired field with the left mouse button and select a colour from the colour palette. The sensor curve is shown in the newly selected colour.

"Report" tab:

The Report tab shows the protocol data transferred from devices.

SegoSoft - Instrument reprocessing, Roc	m L042 - [Record: Comcotec Sterilisator - Cycle completed]
Pile Edit View Archive Extras	Nindow ?
) 🖿 🗔 🗶 🗊 🖻 🛎 💥	
Overview ×	Chart Report
Comcotec Sterilisator - Cycle completed	04/06/2015 03:19:00 - 0108 mbar[abs] 79.4 °C - Trocknen Beginn
Comcotec Sterilisator - Cycle completed	04/06/2015 03:22:00 - 0050 mbar[abs] 67.9 °C - Trocknen Ende
	04/06/2015 03:22:55 - 0889 mbar[abs] 65.4 °C - Belüften Schaltpunkt
	04/06/2015 03:28:17 - 0109 mbar[abs] 74.2 °C - Trocknen Beginn
	04/06/2015 03:31:17 - 0046 mbar[abs] 61.3 °C - Trocknen Ende
	[04/06/2015 03:32:12 - 0892 mbar[abs] 58.9 °C - Belüften Schaltpunkt
	[04/06/2015 03:37:29 - 0112 mbar[abs] 71.3 °C - Trocknen Beginn
	104/06/2015 03:40:29 - 0046 mbar[abs] 57.9 °C - Irocknen Ende
	104/06/2015 03:40:27 - 0046 mbarlabsj 57.9 °C - Sterilluit Beginn 104/06/2015 02:41:24 - 0040 mbarlabsj 57.9 °C - Dametanslama bestandam Stand 02.
	04/06/2015 03:41:34 - 0960 mbar[abs] 55:4 °C - Ende - Sterilisiert

Functions for the Chart tab

Generate help lines of the x-axis and y-axis

Select an axis by clicking on it with the left mouse button. It is surrounded by a dashed line. Press and hold the left mouse button to drag the axis to the centre of the record window. A help line appears. The line can be moved anywhere along the selected axis by pressing and holding the left mouse button. The front section of the help line shows the exact numerical value of the axis on which the help line is located.



For example, the user can check on the curve whether a specified temperature was reached at a specific time.

Delete help line: Select the help line with the mouse cursor and press the right mouse button. The chart command context menu opens and the help line is deleted.



Additional menu commands for the Chart tab with the record window open

When records are displayed in the **record window**, the "**Edit**" commands also appear for further processing: "**Chart**" and "**Record**" and in the main menu bar: "**Window**". The commands for the chart can also be opened from the context menu (right mouse button on chart).

"Chart" context menu

Select	
Zoom	
Move	
Cursor	
Measure	
Zoom in	+
Zoom out	-
Next curve	Page up
Prev curve	Page down
Reset	Pos 1

"Chart/Select"

With this command activated the curve of a specific sensor can be selected with the mouse cursor. The selected curve changes colour (inverse colour). If the inverse colour is difficult to see, the colour setting can be changed in the data section of the record window. The selection is a condition for using the "**Cursor**" command.

"Chart/Zoom"

A selected section of a curve is magnified to any level required. This function provides the option of examining a section of the displayed curve in more detail.

The curve section is selected by pressing and holding the mouse button and drawing a rectangle and is magnified when the mouse button is released. This process can be repeated as often as required.

The original size is restored with the "Chart/Reset" command.

"Chart/Move"

Precondition for activating the command: The record window must be activated by clicking it with the mouse.

With the command activated the complete image of the record curves within the axes can be moved by pressing and holding the left mouse button.

"Chart/Cursor"

This function can be used to determine exact curve values for a specific time in the record and to show them on the curve.

Precondition for activating the command: Select the desired curve with "**Chart/Select**". With the command activated a magnified cursor appears in the record window, which follows the curve when the mouse is moved horizontally. A field with the exact records of the time, temperature and pressure is shown in the top section of the record window. Other information may also be visible depending on the connected medical device.

If an important point of the curve is reached, the relevant values (time, temperature or pressure) can be fixed in writing on exactly the selected point of the curve. The resulting document can be saved as a file with "**File/Create PDF**".



"Chart/Measure"



The exact line of the measured curve must be followed to prevent incorrect measurement results over many measured curves.

This function allows curve sections (e.g. holding time of the sterilisation phase) to measured precisely. The command should be activated from the context menu (right mouse button).



Press and hold the left mouse button and move the mouse cursor from the start to the end of the measured curve section and release it. The measured numerical values for time and temperature or time and pressure appear. The resulting document can be saved as a file with "File/Create PDF".

"Chart/Magnify "

Activation of this command magnifies all curves of the record window in stages.

"Chart/Shrink "

Activation of this command shrinks all curves of the record window in stages.

"Chart/Next curve"

In records with multiple sensor curves, when one curve is selected the above curve (Page Up) can be selected.

"Chart/Previous curve"

In records with multiple sensor curves, when one curve is selected the lower curve (Page Down) can be selected.

"Chart/Reset"

The original curve view in the record window is restored.

"Edit/Record" supplementary menu (available on display of a record)



"Record/Release"

Opens the release dialogue for release of the record.

"Record/Validate"

Precondition for activating the command: The record that is to checked in the archive must have been released and the corresponding record window must be open. SegoSoft checks whether a change has been made after release (validity status)

Valid. No changes after release.
OK

"Record/Abort"

Precondition for activating the command: A medical device without a defined program end (e.g. osmosis system, sealing unit) must be connected.

On activation of the command the record is terminated manually.

"Window" supplementary menu.

In the "**Window**" supplementary menu the layout and view of the SegoSoft windows can be changed.

Supplementary menu commands in the "File" menu when opening the record window

The "Create PDF", "Print" and "Print preview" commands are available.

"File/Create PDF"



The PDF file created with this command should only be considered a supplement to the released record in the archive. PDF files of records that are not released also do not have a positive release status.

A supplementary PDF file can be created from a record opened from the archive or a record marked "**Cycle completed**" from a dialogue box. A PDF file is created after selection of the save location and the file name and a password prompt. By default the file shows an image of the complete curve over the duration of the record. Selecting "**Print measured values**" in the dialogue window saves in addition to the measured curves the measured values, process data and additional information in the PDF file.

SegoSoft Settings	
✓ Separate chart	
Print measured values	
✓ Keep chart settings	🔽 Colour printing

"File/Close"



The data of the current record are lost when this command is run. Loss of information.

Activation of the command and confirmation of the prompt dialogue closes the currently running or open record.

"File/Print "

A record can be opened from the archive or a record marked "**Cycle completed**" can be printed out to a connected printer from a dialogue box. The printed image by default shows the complete curve over the duration of the record. Single parts of curves can be shown magnified and also printed with "**Chart/Zoom**". Selecting "**Print measured values**" in the dialogue window saves in addition to the measured curves the measured values, process data and additional information.

"File/Print preview"

Activation of the command shows a preview of the printed version of the open record.

3.3.3 Device settings

To be opened with: Tools/Settings["] Then select the applicable device in the "Devices" tree structure.

a sectings	00	Comcotec Sterilisa	ator		
& General		nformation		*	Delete
evices	[Device Name	Comcotec Sterilisator		device
Palazza	1	Manufacturer	Comcotec GmbH		·
Elease		Гуре	Demo Generic		User
m	1	/ersion	1.0		defined
ce i	l	_ocation			fields
ark	1	Device ID	S7334		Routine
NOTE .	(Cycle	2365		test
data	E	Enabled	Yes		
vice Card	[Device category	Demo		Service
any		Display		=	notes
		Chart			
		Background color			Edit
os		Foreground color			
trail	-	Grid color			Delete
		Connection			
ls		Connection type	File	2	
s		Connection parameters			
		Path	C:\Comcotec\SegoSoft\Demo\S		
		Sensors			
cotec sterilisator		Sensor 1			
۰		Sensor 1	Chamber temperature		
abel		Type	remperature sensor P1100		
aterfaces		Unit	16 		
tenaces		Gradient			
		Unset	U		
		LOIOF			
		Visible			
		Sensor 2	Charachara ann ann an A		
		Sensor 2	Chamber pressure		
		туре	Fressure sensor	-	

Ξ	Information	*	Information: List of information recorded
	Device Name	Comcotec Sterilisator	when the device was greated. Changes can
	Manufacturer	Comcotec GmbH	when the device was created. Changes can
	Туре	Demo Generic	also be made in enabled fields subject to the
	Version	1.0	corresponding group rights. Device name,
	Location		manufacturer number and cvcle counter are
	Device ID	S7334	listed in the release dialogue
	Cycle	2365	noted in the release dialogue.
	Enabled	Yes	
	Device category	Demo	
-	Display		Display: Background colour, foreground
	Chart		colour and grid colour of the record curve can
	Background color		be changed with the corresponding group
	Foreground color		rights. Click on the desired field with the left
	Grid color		mouse button and select a colour from the
			colour palette.

Connection	·		
Connection tupe	Serial	Connection : The connection type and	
E Connection parameters		parameters are displayed. If a serial	
Port	COM1	connection is used, the com port is displayed.	
Baudrate	00.20	Changes can also be made in enabled fields	
Data bite	0	subject to the corresponding group rights	
- Data bits	o Noro	Changes to for example the comport can be	
Chan bite	1	changes to, for example, the comport can be	
Stop bits	0.4	accepted directly with the Port dropdown	
Hanosnaking		list	
	·		
Sensor 1		Sensors . The various sensors are	
Sensor 1	Temperature	displayed depending on the connected device	
Туре	Temperature sensor PT100	(steriliser). Changes can also be made in	
Unit	°C	enabled fields subject to the corresponding	
Gradient	1	aroun rights	
Offset	0	Uiding or chowing the checkmark in the	
Color		Hiding of showing the checkmark in the	
Visible		Displays field hides or shows the sensor	
Sensor 2		curve during processing of a device. The	
Sensor 2	Pressure	- colour of the concer ourse is changed in the	
Туре	Pressure sensor	colour of the sensor curve is changed in the	
Unit	hPa	Colour field. Click on the field with the left	
Gradient	1	mouse during processing of the device and	
Offset	0	about a colour from the polotte	
Color		select a colour from the palette.	
Visible			
User defined fields		User fields: Display of fields defined by	
Sterilization material.	Semicritical A/B	waser menual Display of ficius definied by	
Process Indicator/Helix T.		the user. User-defined fields are generally	
Treatment Indicator		displayed in the release dialogue.	
Bemark		—	
Toman		-	
Routine test		Poutine testing: Entries regarding the	
Visual inspection chamber	- please select -	"eingle device release before starting work"	
Visual inspection seal	- please select -	"single device release before starting work"	
Dionised water quality	- please select -	are displayed in the device settings window.	
Vacuum test	- please select -	-	
Emptu charge	- please select -	-	
Rowie + Dick		-	
Dowie + Dick		_	
nemark	any	-	
E Polozeo	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
release Process outbustion	Linknown	Release: Process evaluation and product	
Process evaluation		release are prompted in the release dialogue.	
Frouuct release	TOUKUOWU		
🗉 Output		Output printer: The "line chart report	
⊡ Printer		with the state of	
Line chart	V	protocols etc." sections are based on the	
Beport		sections of the same name in the record	
Protocola		document. The default settings for output to	
		the printer are defined by switching on and off	
User defined fields			
Measured values			
Information		$_{\rm -}$ printing for the device on or off. The	
Color printing	V	SegoLabel add-on must also be selected in	
Label printer		the add-ons section in the tree structure for	
Labels		the label printing function	

_				
[🗉 Servio	ce notes		Maintonanco information: The
	Service	e note		
	Nar	ne	Service (12 month)	maintenance information is displayed in the
	Des	scription	Maintenance necessary! Please make an appointment with customer service.	device settings window with descriptions and intervals.
	Cor	nditions		
	=	Condition		
		Interval	Period (Month)	If a service is due, a reminder window is
		Value	12	automatically displayed on the monitor to
		<u>Start value</u>		remind the user of the service
		Actual value		
		Name		
	=	Condition		After the service the maintenance prompt can
		Interval	Period (Hours)	be acknowledged and documented
		Value	1000	
Ľ				

Additional folders depending on the connected device (e.g. disinfector):

■ Indicators A0 Heat resistance *C Reference temperature Start temperature *C <u>Tolerance *C</u> Temperature distributi	10 80 65 3	Indicators : The A ₀ value (germ reduction number) is calculated in seconds with the created values. Changes can also be made in enabled fields subject to the corresponding group rights.
Characteristics Target temperature 90* Color Visible Target temperature Target temperature 60* Color Visible Target temperature	Image: Second secon	Characteristic curves : Lines that mark the specified temperatures that must be reached by the device so the process data conform to the requirements.

Additional functions in the device settings window

The device settings are opened with "**Tools/Settings**" and selecting the device in the device tree.

Devices additional function

Settings					×
E Settings	¥	Comcotec Steriliz	er		
	E	Information		*	Delete
Devices		Device Name	Comcotec Sterilizer		device
Belance		Manufacturer	Comcotec GmbH		
Release		Туре	Demo Generic		User
System		Version	1.0		defined
Surface		Location			fields
A Notwork		Device ID	S7334		Deutine
Network		Cycle	2365	E	test
🗄 🥁 Master data		Enabled	Yes		
		Device category	Demo		Service
and Company	E	Display			notes
Company	E	Chart			
Users		Background color			Edit
Groups		Foreground color			
Audit trail		Grid color			Delete

User fields

The user fields are listed in the device settings window and depending on the setting may be listed in the release dialogue. Important decision functions for the requirements can be defined and saved for every device process (batch-related routine test).

"Function: user fields (Insert field)"

A new field can be inserted in a dialogue window with the corresponding group rights (password prompt), which will be listed in the device settings window after the input.

"Routine testing"

The daily routine testing before starting work in accordance with manufacturers' directions can be defined specifically for individual devices. A specially created menu item in SegoSoft can be saved as a document with the applicable process data records as a PDF file.

"Function: Routine testing (Insert field)"

A new routine testing field can be inserted in a dialogue window with the corresponding group rights (password prompt), which will be listed in the device settings window after the input. The marked routine texting field can be edited with the corresponding group rights (password prompt) in a dialogue window.

"Maintenance information"

The maintenance information reminds the user when service is required. It can be both services that the user can perform or service that must be performed by customer service.

"Function: Maintenance information (Insert field)"

A new maintenance information form can be inserted in a dialogue window with the corresponding group rights (password prompt), which will be listed in the device settings window after the input.

"Function: Delete (field)"

Precondition for activating the command: The field that is to be deleted (user field, routine testing or maintenance information) must be marked.

"Function: Edit (field)"

Precondition for activating the command: The maintenance form that is to be edited (user field, routine testing or maintenance information) must be marked.

3.3.4 Devices window

To be opened with: "View/Devices"

All installed devices are shown in the devices window.

There are two views that can be displayed with "Devices/Device details" and

"Devices/Device icons" or by clicking a device in the devices window with the right mouse button to open "Device details" or "Device icons" from the context menu.

The "**Device details**" view shows a table with the device information, some of which was entered when the device was created. (Device name, Company, Type, Status, Location, Manufacturer number, Activated and Status counter). A device icon is displayed with the device names, and also shows the status of the device.

The "**Device icons**" view shows icons for the various devices with the names of the devices. The icon also shows the status of the device.

3.3.5 Messages window

To be opened with: "View/Messages"

The messages window lists information on events and status changes occurring during operation of the program. This includes messages regarding the status of the serial port, current records, files that have just been loaded and fault reports.

3.4 Status bar

To be opened with: "View/Status bar"

The status bar shows the status of SegoSoft, descriptions of the icons on the tool bar, information on menu commands and the log-in status.

4 Maintenance information

The maintenance information reminds the user when service is required. It can be both services that the user can perform or service that must be performed by customer service.

The manufacturer's requirements for maintenance (see maintenance manual) for the specific device can be input into the maintenance information form.

4.1 Creating maintenance information form

Precondition for activating the command: The user must have corresponding group rights and must be logged in. The applicable preparation device has been created and the device settings window is open ("**Tools/Settings**" for selection of the device in the device tree).

To be opened with: "Function (button): Maintenance information"

A separate window [Maintenance information] opens.

🔆 Settings	🖔 Comcotec Sterilize	r		
	Information		*	Delete
Sevices	Device Name	Comcotec Sterilizer	1997	device
and Palance	Manufacturer	Comcotec GmbH		
Release	Туре	Demo Generic		User
System	Version	1.0		defined
Surface	Location			fields
and Natural	Device ID	S7334		Dentis
Network	Cycle	2365	E	test
🥉 Master data	Enabled	Yes		
Service Card	Device category	Demo		Service
all Company	🗆 Display			notes
Company	Chart			
Users	Background color			Edit
	Foreground color			
Audit trail	Grid color		1.00	Delete
Audit trail	Connection			-
Settings	Connection type	File		
K Licenses	Connection parameters			
Devices	Path	C:\Comcotec\SegoSoft\Demo\Steri		
Devices	Sensors			
Comcotec Thermodesinfecto	Sensor 1			
Compotes Starilizer	Sensor 1	Chamber temperature		

The **<New>** entry must be selected to create new information.

The contents of the **Information** field are preconfigured for some preparation devices. When a service or validation is selected, entries appear in following fields. They can be confirmed with **OK**.

Name Service (12 month)	Actual name of the maintenance information, e.g.: Service (12 months). Appears in the device settings window with the reminder window when a service is due and the dialogue window for acknowledging the service (release window).
Type Validation Validation Cleaning Replacement Test Check	Selection of type of service. Validation , Service , Cleaning , Replacement , Test and Inspection can be selected. The information is shown in the device settings window.
Interval Add Edit Delete	Select Insert to open a new dialogue window Maintenance interval auf. In Interval the maintenance interval can be selected by time or by device run time (hours, days, weeks, months, years and after every program run). Select Values for more precise specifications. In All a positive value >0 (e.g. 1000 with the time setting (hours)) and with Start value the start date with the start time (e.g. 1.10.10 _ 15:30) must be input. The actual value is automatically

Service Note	calculated. The intervals are shown in the device settings window and the reminder window when a service is due.
Name Type Validation Interval Add Edit Description Inquiry Cancel OK	A detailed description of the maintenance information is given here. The description of the maintenance information is shown in the device settings window with the reminder window when a service is due and the dialogue window for acknowledging the service (release window).
Inquiry Maintenance executed?	A detailed description of the result prompt is given here.The description of the result prompt is shown in the device settings window and it is requested in the dialogue window for acknowledging the service (release window).

4.2 Reminder window for services

If a service is due, a reminder window is automatically displayed on the monitor to remind the user that a service is due.

Natured services: Comcotec Sterilizer Service (12 month)		
Maintenance necessary! Please make an appointment with customer service.		
	44	71

The reminder window is shown again at the first preparation run of the next day until the service has been acknowledged or the "**Do not show information again"** field is enabled.

4.3 Acknowledging the service (release window)

Precondition for activating the command: The user must have corresponding group rights and must be logged in. The maintenance information window is open and the reminder that is to be acknowledged is selected.

File Edit Vi	ew Archive	Extras Window	?
Cut	Ctrl+X		
Сору	Ctrl+C		
Insert	Ctrl+V	× E Serv	vice note
Select all	Ctrl+A	N	lame
Service Note	•	Release	tio
		Edit	

To be opened with: "Edit/Maintenance information/Release"

A separate window [Release] opens.

	Information	
	Device Name	Comcotec Sterilizer
	Device ID	\$7334
	Cycle	2365
-	Release	
	Maintenance executed?	Unknown
-	Service note	
	Name	Service (12 month)
	Description	Maintenance necessary! Please make an appointment with customer service.
	Annotation	
U		
0	lser	C

The completed service must be acknowledged in the dropdown list **"Inspection passed**".

An entry can be made in the "**Comment**" field if necessary.

The completed maintenance information form is saved in the archive as a PDF file.

5 Routine testing

Routine testing includes a periodic series of checks and tests in the periods between performance tests. According to the recommendations of the RKI (Robert Koch Institute), a distinction is made between the routine testing of a steriliser every work day and every batch. The daily tests are referred to as "**single device release**" **before starting work**. In contrast, the batch-related tests, as the test indicates, must be performed at every process run.

The operator is responsible for performing and documenting checks and

tests. For more information see the device instructions for use of the device manufacturer.

5.1 **Daily routine testing**

Example of a washer disinfector (WD)

The guidelines of the DGKH (German Association for Hospital Hygiene), the DGSV (German Association for Sterile Goods Supply) and the AKI (Instrument Preparation Working Group) for validation and routine monitoring of automated cleaning and disinfection processes for thermostable medical devices (2nd edition, November 2006) specify the following items for daily testing of the WD.

Fluff sieves (filters) coarse/fine	Clean all fluff sieves and check that they are undamaged and correctly installed.
Pump sump	Inspect and clean, remove small parts, e.g. scalpel blades, needles etc. while following the rules for health and safety
Rotating arms/spray nozzles	Check that they rotate freely and evenly in the WD and the load trolley, check that nozzles are not blocked and clean if necessary
Trolley	
Attachment	Correct attachment of the trolley in the WD
Connections/adapters/ plugs/nozzles	Check that Luer Locks, hose connections, plugs and nozzles on the trolley are functional and complete
Rollers	Check that rollers are functional and complete
Trolley label	Code, if present check
Visual inspection of inside and outside of WD	Check that interior is clean and free from deposits (e.g. lime, silicates, rust)
Door seal	Inspect door seal to ensure that it is clean and does not leak
Additional daily checks specified in the instructions for use	As directed by the manufacturer
Deionised water quality (conductivity measurement)	Daily measurement of conductivity, should not exceed 15 $\mu\text{S/cm}$
Signature of employee	Initials of the employee
To ensure trouble-free processing, the levels in the supp	ly containers must be checked (integrated containers,

disposable canisters, dosage systems have different requirements).

Creating routine testing form

Open "Tools/Settings" (select the device in the device tree, then select **"Function** (button) routine testing"), the input dialogue box for inserting a new field opens.

lame	Routine test	×	
Chimistry /Dosage	Name	Routine test	
Content	Fluff sieves(filter) coarse/fine	Name	
- please select -	Content	Pump sump	
Up not OK	- please select - OK	Content	
Down	not OK	- please select - OK	
	Down	not OK	
		Down	Remove >>
Mandatojy Display with relea	ase 🕢 Mandatojy 🔲 Display with relea	se	

Mandatory fields:

Form fields (lists) in routine testing that **must** be completed by hygiene personnel. Hygiene personnel **must** always complete an evaluation of the results, i.e. the evaluation criteria are used as a checklist from which the applicable statement can be selected. To ensure that a

selection is made, the evaluation criteria always start with a general statement such as "Please select". This is followed by the actual criteria, such as "OK" or "Not OK". If the list is not completed, the missing information is shown in red. The routine testing form cannot be acknowledged and closed until it has been completed.

Release fields:

The contents of the fields are taken from the release dialogue for routine testing and are queried during

the release of the routine testing.

The documentation of the reaction to unexpected process sequences should be included in the routine form for washer disinfectors.

vame Remark	
Content	
Up	<< Add
Down	Remove >>
	Tienove //

Deviations in the daily routine check can be recorded in the "Remarks" field. E.g.: Faulty fluff sieve was replaced.

Example for a steriliser

According to the recommendations of the RKI (Robert Koch Institute) the tests should include: visual inspection of the chamber, seal, feed water (quality) and the feed water tank (volume of water).

Most manufacturers recommend a daily program run:

- 1. Vacuum test program
- 2. Empty batch program
- 3. Bowie + Dick test program (steam penetration test)

Creating routine testing form

Open "Tools/Settings" (select the device in the device tree, then select **"Function** (button) routine testing"), the input dialogue box for inserting a new field opens.

Mandatory fields:

Form fields (lists) in routine testing that **must** be completed by hygiene personnel. Hygiene personnel **must** always complete an evaluation of the results, i.e. the evaluation criteria are used as a checklist from which the applicable statement can be selected. To ensure that a selection is made, the evaluation criteria always start with a general statement such as "Please select". This is followed by the actual criteria, such as "OK" or "Not OK". If the list is not completed, the missing information is shown in red. The routine testing form cannot be acknowledged and closed until it has been completed.

Release fields:

The contents of the fields are taken from the release dialogue for routine testing and are queried during

the release of the routine testing.

ame	Routine test	anani valuato	x
/acuum test	Name Bowie + Dick	Routine test	an ha an ha 1
ontent		Name	
- please select - OK	Content	Empty charge	
Up not OK	- please select - OK	Content	
Down	not OK	- please select -	
	Down	Up not OK	<< Add
		Down	Remove >>
Mandatory 📃 Display with	release		
	🦳 Mandatory 🔲 Display with	n release	

The documentation of the reaction to unexpected process sequences should be included in the routine form for sterilisers.

< Add		
nove >>		4
	< Add	< Add

Deviations in the daily routine check can be recorded in the "Remarks" field. e.g.: vacuum test not OK -> test was repeated.

71	
----	--

The input information is listed in the device settings window.



5.1.1 Routine testing window

The routine testing form is opened from the routine testing window. Completing the form documents the routine testing.

To be opened with:

Double-click on the desired device in the device window with the left mouse button or click the right mouse button on the desired device in the device window to select **Routine testing**" from the context menu

Steriliser

After the released daily test batches (vacuum test, empty batch and Bowie + Dick test) on a **steriliser**, the routine testing form is opened from the routine testing window. The test batches with the basic information (batch no., date, time) are documented in the attached process data table. The routine testing form is completed and released with a dialogue window.

Example: Steriliser routine testing window

📀 SegoSoft - Instrument reprocession, , Ro	oom L042	2 - [Routine T	est: Cor	ncotec Sterilisate	or]							- D X
File Edit View Archive Extras	Window	?										_ 8 ×
) 🖿 🖬 🗶 🗊 🖨 👗		🔁 📝										
Overview ×	E Rou	utine test										
	Visu	ual Inspection (Chamber	please select -								
	Visu	ual inspection s	;eal	please select -								
	Dior	nised water qu	ality	please select -					Dout	ino to	ating fo	~m
	Vac	cuum test		please select -					Roui	ine le	sting io	$m_{\rm m}$
	Emp	pty charge		please select -							-	
	Bow	wie + Dick		please select -								
	Rem	mark										
	Be	E	Durat	. St	Charge	Progr	Devic	Су	Device Na	Manufact	T Process e	valuat Proc
	15/07/	/2 15/0	01:23:3/	4 Cycle	D000001	P1 134° F	S7334					Yes
	15/07/	/2 15/0	01:23:3/	4 Cycle	D000000	P1 134° F	S7334	Atta	ached	proce	ess data	table
	15/07/	/2 15/0	01:23:34	4 Cycle	D000002	P1 134° F	\$7334	2500	Comcotec ste	comcotec om	Demo UK	Yes
	4											

Open dialogue field of routine testing form

"Edit/Routine testing/Release"



A separate window [Release] opens

+	Information	
-	Routine test	
	Visual inspection chamber	ОК
	Visual inspection seal	ОК
	Dionised water quality	ОК
	Vacuum test	OK
	Empty charge	OK
	Bowie + Dick	OK
	Remark	any
-	Release	
	Test passed	Yes
		Unknown
		Yes No
		NO
	-	
-0	ser	-
L	amine, Specimen	
-		

The routine testing can be released after editing the dropdown lists of the listed tests.

Select the person responsible for the release from the password prompt. Then the digital signature with name, date and time is created for the person responsible for the release.

The completed form and the attached process data table are saved in the archive as PDF file.

Washer disinfector

The routine testing form for a **washer disinfector** is opened from the routine testing window. The routine testing form is completed and released with a dialogue window.

Example: Routine testing window thermodisinfector

Open dialogue field of routine testing form

SegoSoft - Instrument reprocession, , Roo	m L042 - [Routine Test: Co	mcotec thermodisinfe	ctor]
🛐 File Edit View Archive Extras W	/indow ?		
	0 🖸 👔		
Overview ×	Routine test		
	Chimitry/Dosage	- please select -	
	Fluff sieve(filter) coarse/fin	ie - please select -	Pouting testing form
	Pump sump	- please select -	Routine testing form
	Control rotation arm	- please select-	
	Visual inspecting in/out	- please select -	
	Door seal	-please select -	
	Remark		

6 "Edit/Routine testing/Release"



A separate window [Release] opens.

The routine testing can be released after editing the dropdown lists of the listed tests.

elea	ise	
Ξ	Information	
	Device Name	Comcotec Thermodesinfector
	Producernumber	D143298
	Cycle	1234
	Routine test	·
	Chimistry /Dosage	OK
Fluff sieves(filter) coarse/f		OK
	Pump sump	OK
	Controll rotating arm	OK
	Visual inspecting in-/out	OK
	Door seal	OK
	Remark	any
	Release	
	Test passed	Unknown 🔹
		Unknown
		Yes No
U	ser	
L	amine, Specimen	(`
		OK Cancel Help

Select the person responsible for the release from the password prompt. Then the digital signature with name, date and ime is created for the person responsible for the release.

The completed form is saved in the archive as a PDF file.

6.1 Batch-based routine testing

User fields

Sample release dialogue

In accordance with the RKI (Robert Koch Institute) and the recommendations of the DGSV (German Association for Sterile Goods Supply e.V.) and the AKI (Instrument Preparation Working Group), the following items for every device run should be included in the release dialogue.

Open the device settings window from **Tools/Settings** (select the device in the device tree, then select "Function (button) routine testing"), the input dialogue box for inserting a new field opens.

	🏂 Comcotec Sterilizer	
General	 Information 	Delete
Devices	🗉 Display	device
Release	Connection	
al c	Sensors	User
System	User defined fields	defined
Surface	Houtine test	licius
Setwork	T Release	Routine
Master data	+ Service notes	test
Service Card		Service
Company		notes
		Eda
		Edit
		Delete
Settings		
Licenses		
Comcotec Thermodesinf	cto	

Example: Information on load

Please enable the mandatory and release field in the load field.

Mandatory fields:

Name Load to s	terilize	
Content Up Down	- please select - Semicritical A/B Critical A/B Semicritical A Semicritical A Critical A Critical B	<< Add Remove >>
Manda)	ory Display with release	Cancel OK

Form fields (lists) in routine testing that **must** be completed by hygiene personnel. Hygiene personnel **must** always complete an evaluation of the results, i.e. the evaluation criteria are

used as a checklist from which the applicable statement can be selected. To ensure that a selection is made, the evaluation criteria always start with a general statement such as "Please

select". This is followed by the actual criteria, such as such as "OK" or "Not OK". If the list is not completed, the missing information is shown in red. The routine testing form cannot be acknowledged and closed until it has been completed. Release fields:

The contents of the fields are taken from the release dialogue and are queried during batch release.

Example: Documentation of the treatment indicator

Name Treatment Indicator	1
Content	1
Up OK not OK	< Add
Down	Remove >>

A treatment indicator (Class 1, DIN EN ISO 11140-1) should be used as per RKI recommendations in every device process on the steriliser load to ensure that a sterilised item can be distinguished from an unsterilised item.

The indicator is evaluated and documented in SegoSoft by the release dialogue.

Example: Documentation of the process indicator

arne Process Indicator	
ontent	
Up OK not OK	<< Add
Down	Remove >>

A process indicator (chemo-indicator Class 5, DIN EIN ISO 11140-1) should be included with critical A products in every device process as per RKI recommendations. After evaluation and documentation of the indicator in the SegoSoft release dialogue, the indicator strips can be discarded, because the information value of the strip decrease over time. Example: Documentation of the helix test

Name	-
Helix Test	
Content	
- please select -	
Up Inot OK	<< Add
Down	Remove >>

A PCD process indicator (helix test) should be included with critical B products in every device process.

After evaluation and documentation of the indicator in the SegoSoft release dialogue the indicator strips can be discarded, because the information value of the strip decreases over time.

Example: Documentation of the reaction to unexpected process sequences

Remark	
Content	
Up	<< Add
Down	Remove >>

Deviations in the daily routine check can be recorded in the "Remarks" field. E.g.: Helix test not OK -> preparation process is repeated.

Please enable only the release field in the remarks field.

lease		X]			Information	
lease	_		≜ bBa		Device Name	Comcotec Sterilizer
Information			4000		Туре	Demo Generic
Device Name	Compoted Sterilizer		4000		Location	
Device ID	57334		- 3800		Device ID	\$7334
Cucle	2365		-3600		Cycle	2365
Process data	2000		3400		Device category	Demo
User defined fields			3200	Ð	Display	
Sterilization material.	Semicritical A/B			Ð	Process data	
Process Indicator	ОК.		-2800	Ð	Sensors	
Treatment Indicator	ОК		2800		User defined fields	
Helix Test	ок		2000		Sterilization material.	Semicritical A/B
Remark	anv			7	Process Indicator	OK
Release			-2260		Treatment Indicator	OK
Process evaluation	ОК		- 2000		Helix Test	OK
Product release	Yes		-1800		Remark	any
			-1600		Release	
			-1400		Process evaluation	OK
			- 400		Product release	Yes
	Product release issued		1200			
User		_	- 1000			
Lamine, Specimen		•	800			
		-	600			
			400			
		_	200			
	OK Cancel Help		200			
			₽0			

The entries in the user fields are queried in the release dialogue as soon as the device program is complete and the product release can be issued.

The prerequisite for the appearance of the user fields in the release dialogue is an **enabled release field.**

7 Release



Before releasing medical devices, the recorded process data must be checked to ensure that the process was complete and correct. Check for any errors and warning messages on your preparation device.

The preparation of medical devices is complete with the release for use. The release issued based on the conformance of the process parameters during preparation with those of the validation protocols and includes performance and documentation of the daily routine testing, checking and documentation of the complete and correct process (batch-based routine testing and batch documentation), checking that packaging is undamaged and dry, and checking the labelling.

The user must also check that no error and warning messages were output by the connected preparation device. Check the manufacturer's instructions for use if error and warning messages are output.

SegoSoft is by default set up to open a dialogue window automatically at the end of every program in which the release for use of the medical devices described above is completed.

7.1 Release dialogue window

Open with: opens automatically by default at the end of every program.

	Information		
Device Name			
	Device Name	Composed Sterilizer	
	Device ID Cuele	27534	
_	Lycie Deserve dete	2365	
_	Process data		
	State		
	Charge No.	D000009	
	Program	P1 134° Feste Güter	
+	User defined fields		
-	Release		
	Process evaluation	Unknown	
	Product release	Unknown	
	<u>Product release</u>	Unknown Product release not granted	
U	<u>Product release</u>	Unknown Product release not granted	
U	<u>Product release</u> Jser Lamine, Specimen	Unknown Product release not granted	
U	<u>Product release</u> Jser .amine, Specimen	Unknown Product release not granted	
U	<u>Product release</u> Jser .amine, Specimen	Unknown Product release not granted	

Release dialogue window with the important information for the release of the medical device, the process data, the user-defined fields for completion and the release with the process evaluation and the product release.

The size of the release dialogue window can be adjusted as required with the left mouse button. The setting is saved.

Only after the user fields and release fields have been edited from the dropdown lists does the entry "**Product release issued**" or "**Product release not issued**" appear. After completed editing of the release window, pressing "**OK**" opens a password prompt for the person responsible for release.

The person responsible for the release is selected from a password prompt. Then the digital signature with name, date and time is created for the person responsible for the release.

-	Information				
	Device Name	Comcotec Sterilizer			
	Device ID	S7334			
	Cycle	2365			
-	Process data				
	State	Cycle completed			
	Charge No.	D000013			
	Program	P1 134° Feste Güter			
+	User defined fields				
-	Release				
	Process evaluation	OK.			
	1.00000 01.0000000	UK			
	Product release	Yes			
	Product release	Yes •			
U	Product release	Yes •			
U	Product release	Yes			
U	Product release	Ves			

Password request		
Common Name	Lamine Specimen	
		6
		La

After entering the password and clicking "**OK**", the released

record is automatically converted to PDF format (if the default settings have not been changed) and saved to the PDF archive.

Manually opening the release dialogue:

If the dialogue window was closed by "Cancel" or if automatic release at the end of the record is disabled, the release dialogue can be opened manually.

To be opened with:

If the dialogue window was closed by "Cancel": With open record window with "**Edit/Record/Release**"



or from the overview window by double-clicking on the entry "Device name/Cycle complete"

SegoSoft - Instrument reprocessing, Roor	m L042 - [Record: Comcotec
Pile Edit View Archive Extras W	Vindow ?
🖿 🖬 🗶 🗊 🖻 🏝 💥	0 😔 🕅
	Chart Report
Comcotec Sterilizer - Cycle completed	°c↑
	160.0-
	150.0-
	140.0
	130.0-
	120.0

8 Label print

The SegoSoft label print barcode identifies the sterile stored instruments with the unique SegoSoft batch number and allows tracing of the batch of prepared instruments to the specific preparation process. The program automatically calculates the expiration date of the prepared batches.



8.1 Barcode label

8.2 Label print dialogue

The label print dialogue opens automatically on completion of product and process release in SegoSoft.

SEC	der ? SEGO SOFT	
Label	Process Documentation	
Medical device	Comcotec Sterilizer	
Serial number	\$7334	
Charge number	D000011	
Released by	Lamine, Specimen	
Remark		
	Comcotec Sterilizer, \$7334 01-08-2016 - 28-01-2017 D000011 Lamine, Specimen P1 134° Feste Güter	

"Cancel" cancels label print.

"**Number**" selects the required number of labels.

"**Print**" prints the required number of labels.

8.3 Settings dialogue

Open the settings dialogue with "Settings/Label"

85	SegoLat	pel - Comcotec	Ste
S	ettings	labels reorder	?
	Label		
	Quit	ALT-F4	L
1	1	- /	

The settings dialogue opens beside the main dialogue.

		SegoLabel - Settings
Settings labels reorder	SEGO [®] SOF	Size Width 52 mm Offset 0 mm Height 25 mm Label:
Label		Select your label cize here
Medical device	Comcotec Sterilizer	
Serial number	\$7334	Fonts
Charge number	0000011	
Released by	Lamine, Specimen	Text Arial, 8
	Comcotec Sterilizer, S7334 01-08-2016 - 28-01-2017 D000011 Lamine, Specimen P1 134° Feste Güter	- Orientation Portrait Landscape Printer Printer
Abort	Count: 3 + -	Expiration date 180 Days Automatically close window after printing Print Cancel Apply OK

8.4 Functions of the settings dialogue

"Size" menu group: enter the specifications of the height and width of the label and also the offset of the label. The offset is the distance between the top margin of the label and the start of the printed information.

"Fonts" menu group: Select the font for the label text and the barcode.

"Alignment" menu group: define the alignment of the label, portrait or landscape

"Printer" menu group: Select the printer for the barcode label.

"Expiration date" menu group: Enter the required number of days for shelf life. The program automatically calculates the correct expiration date for the batch.



When setting the expiration date, please note the specifications for the maximum storage life depending on the sterile packaging.

See the "Storage duration" table in DIN 58953-7 "**Sterilisation – sterile** goods disposal – Part 7: Use of sterilisation paper, nonwoven wrapping material, textile materials, paper bags and sealable pouches and reels"

For paper bags according to DIN EN 868-4 and sealable pouches and reels according to DIN EN 868-5 or similar packages the

maximum storage time is 6 months under correct storage conditions (dry, away from light, dust-free) according to 4.3 in DIN 58953-8.

Checkbox **"Automatically close window after printing"**: If the checkbox is selected, the barcode label print dialogue is automatically closed after printing the labels.

"Accept" Select "Accept" to check your changes in the label preview.

"OK" Select "Save" to save the settings permanently.

"Cancel" closes the settings dialogue.

8.5 Label reprint

Reprinting barcode labels is only possible for processes and batches that have been positively released.

Only users who belong to a group authorised to reprint labels can reprint labels.

In SegoSoft PDF Archive select the process for which you wish to reprint labels with the right mouse button.

St	Charge	Progr	Devic	Су	Device Na
Cycle	D000000	P1 134° F	\$7334	2365	Comcotec Ste
Cycle	D000001	P1 134	Save as		šte
Cycle	D000003	P1 134	Copy		šte
Cycle	D000004	P1 134	Display		šte
Cycle	D000007	P1 134	Configure colu		šte
		Routir	Configure cold	imns	Гh
Cycle	D000012	P1 134	Collate		šte
Cycle	D000009	P1 134	Set filter		F3 ^{Ste}
Cycle	D000010	P1 134	Recet filter		šte
Cycle	D000011	P1 134	Reservice		šte
		Routir	Label printing		ite
		Routir	Pefrech		ES Ste
			Nerresit		
			Select all		Ctrl+A

Select **"Label print"** to reprint barcode labels for the selected process.

9 Archive

The measured data are temporarily saved immediately on receipt from the connected device in an internal proprietary system format that is not open and is protected from manipulation. The raw data are listed in "**Archive/Records**" and are available for purposes such as analysis on completion of the record. Double-click with the left mouse button on the required record to open a separate window **[Record]**, referred to as the record window.

After release in the release dialogue the raw data are converted to PDF format. The PDF files are listed in "**Archive/PDF Archive**" and can also be opened by double-clicking on the required record with the left mouse button. A separate window **[PDF Archive]** opens with the chart, the report, the protocol, the list of measured values and the information on the process data of the record.

The audit trail records the information that was specified in "Tools/Settings".

10 Authentication

10.1 Session-oriented log-in

With all important steps for traceable documentation, e.g. when releasing and signing documents the user is prompted for user name and password.

Login	×
User	
Olivia, Specimen	- OK
Operators	Cancel

The log-in status is shown at the status bar at the bottom right.

Devic	III			
Ready		<	Olivia, Specimen	

To prevent unauthorised access, a time interval defining the number of minutes after which the user will be automatically logged-out can be set with corresponding group rights in

"Tools/Settings" in the "Master data/Settings" tree structure.

SegoSoft logs the logged-in user out of the system automatically after a specified time to prevent unauthorised access.



Segosoft checks the number of failed authentication attempts since the last successful authentication after starting the program. If the maximum number of failed authentications is reached, the user can no longer be authenticated for a period of $2 \times n$ (n = number of failed authentication attempts). The maximum number of failed authentications is 5.

If the authentication fails, the following message is displayed: "Error during login. Incorrect password?"

The time interval when the maximum number of failed authentications is not displayed; logging-in is not possible during this interval.

10.2 Changing the password

To be opened with: "Tools/Change password"

After entering the current password the selected user can select a new password.



The requirements for the password are allocated by the group and it is defined by the administrator.

The following password rules apply to the administrator: The password must be at least 6 characters and must include upper case and lower case letters and also numbers. If the password cannot be changed, the dialogue message "Password was not changed" and additional details of the reason for the failed change are displayed (e.g. "Password too short", "Lower-case required", "Upper-case required").



11 Annex

11.1 Checking the signature of the release document

The signature is checked with the following process in Adobe Reader (Adobe Acrobat Reader from Version 11.0.8).



After the release document has been signed, changes may make the signature invalid. Do not save the PDF release document after opening with the "Save as?" command.

11.1.1 Before the first signature check

Import of a trusted certificate

The user's certificate must be classified as trusted before the first check. The certificates of Comcotec Messtechnik GmbH are not known to Adobe Reader in delivery status. For this reason, a signature check with a new installation of Adobe Reader will indicate that the validity of the signature and the identity of the signer

are unknown. The certificate must therefore be classified as trusted before checking the signature.

The root certificate can be downloaded from the web site of Comcotec Messtechnik GmbH. The root certificate must be imported to the trusted certificates in Adobe Reader.

This is done by importing the trusted certificate. The following steps are required*: *As of March 2014 in Adobe Reader XI. Depending on the version of Adobe Reader, the import of the trusted certificate may be done with different methods. Please import the certificate as specified by the specific version of Adobe Reader.

- Download the root certificate (Comcotec Root CA) from <u>https://www.segosoft.info</u> to your computer and check it for integrity with the checksum specified on the web site. You can also use the root certificate included with Segosoft for this purpose.
- 2) Open Adobe Reader and select under Edit the Default option

🚴 Ad	obe Rea	ader	-	-
File	Edit	View	Window	Help
<u></u>	ndo			Ctrl+Z
<u>ها R</u> e	edo		Shift	t+Ctrl+Z
Cu	ut			Ctrl+X
□ <u>C</u>	ору			Ctrl+C
<u> </u>	iste			Ctrl+V
<u>D</u> e	elete			
Se	lect All			Ctrl+A
De	eselect A	AII	Shift	+Ctrl+A
Co	opy File	to Clip <u>b</u> o	oard	
👼 T <u>a</u>	ike a Sna	apshot		
Cł	nec <u>k</u> Spe	elling		•
Lo	ok Up S	elected \	Nord	
🔍 <u>F</u> i	nd			Ctrl+F
A	d <u>v</u> anced	Search	Shift	t+Ctrl+F
Pr	otect <u>i</u> or	n		•
Ar	naly <u>s</u> is			•
A	cessibil	it <u>y</u>		•
Pr	efere <u>n</u> co	es		Ctrl+K

3) In the left window under categories select the signatures option and in the identities and trusted certificates click the **Next** button



4) The "Settings for digital IDs and trusted certificates" window opens

In the navigation menu on the left click on **Trusted certificates** and selected the **Import** button:

🔒 Digital ID and Trusted Certit	ficate Settings			X
🗄 — Digital IDs	🥖 Edit Trust \land Import	≓ Export 👚 Certificate D	etails 🔕 Remove	
Trusted Certificate	Name	Certificate Issuer	Expires	
	Adobe Root CA	Adobe Root CA	2023.01.09 00:07:23 Z	
	Manage My Trusted Ce	rtificates		ĥ
	This is a list of the truncted ear	tification that are quailable for you	w was on this commuter Every	_
	digital signature includes a certi	ficate that is used to determine wi	hether the signature is valid and	±
	trusted.		-	
	Use Edit Trust to specify the a	actions that a document signed wi	th a particular certificate is	
	allowed to perform. Use Impo	rt to add a certificate to your list	of trusted certificates. Use	-

5) In the "Select imported contacts" window click on the **Search** button and open the downloaded certificate. The entry "Comcotec Root CA" and after selecting the "Comcotec Root CA (2013)" contact the certificate is opened in the certificates section.

	E		Demonstra
CA (2012)	Email	0 C-	Remove
LA (2013)	into@segosot	t.info	Browse
			Search
			Jearch
	d		-11
entificates associate	a with the cur	rently selected co	ntact.
Issuer		Expires	Details
(20 Comcotec R	oot CA (2	5/24/2023 12:00:0	0 AM
(20 Comcotec R	oot CA (2 (5/24/2023 12:00:0	0 AM
(20 Comcotec R	oot CA (2)	5/24/2023 12:00:0	Trust
	CA (2013) ertificates associate Issuer	CA (2013) info@segosof ertificates associated with the cur Issuer	CA (2013) info@segosoft.info ertificates associated with the currently selected co Issuer Expires

6) Select the **Trustworthy** button and use the trusted Comcotec certificate as the trusted master for signed documents and data

nport Contact Settings	x
Certificate Details	_
Subject: Comcotec Root CA (2013) <info@segosoft.info></info@segosoft.info>	
Issuer: Comcotec Root CA (2013) <info@segosoft.info></info@segosoft.info>	
Usage: Sign transaction, Sign document, Encrypt keys, Encrypt document, Sign certificate (CA), Sign CRL	
Expiration: 6/24/2023 12:00:00 AM	
Trust	
chain up to a trust anchor in order for signature validation to succeed. Revocation checking is not performed on or obove a trust anchor.	
If signature validation succeeds, trust this certificate for:	
✓ Signed documents or data	
Certified documents	
Dynamic content	
Embedded high privilege JavaScript	
Privileged system operations (networking, printing, file access, etc.)	
Certificate Details	
Help OK Cance	el

7) After confirming this setting with **OK** you import the certificate by clicking on the **Import** button. A message confirming the successful import will be displayed.Comcotec Root CA is now listed as a trusted certificate in the "Setting for digital IDs and trusted certificates" dialogue window.

11.1.2 Checking the signature

The validity of signatures on other documents can now be checked in Adobe Reader:

This requires displaying the properties of the signatures icon in left column.

🔁 den	no.pdf - /	Adobe R	eader	i and				-		-							
File	Edit \	View	Window	Help													
Ģ	Ð	Ì	Ŷ		Ð	\searrow				/ 2	5 (٠	64.49	% ▼		↓
i	This fil	e clair	ns compl	iance v	vith the	PDF//	A stanc	lard ar	nd has	been (opene	d rea	ad-only	y to pre	event m	nodific	ation.
				Creatio	n date: 02/0 n time: 22/0	5/2015 4-23				0	Comcotec	Sterilisa	tor - Pro	cess data	- Line chart	t	
				Company			Infe	matter					Dessare da	-			Deless
Ø				Compa Unicen	ny sed Record		Info Dev Man Typ Ver Dev Cyc	mation ice Name ufacturer sion ice ID e	Comcotec S Comcotec G Demo Gene 1.0 87334 2365	terilisator mbH ric			Process dat Begin End Duration State Charge No. Program	a 02/06/2015 0 02/06/2015 0 01:23:34 Cycle comple D000000 P1 134" Fesl	4:20:00 5:43:34 :ted e Güter		Releas Proces: Product Release Release
I) Ky.)		Compa Unilcen 1900- 1950-	ny ny sed Record		Info Dev Man Typ Ven Dev Cyc Dev	rmation ice Name ufacturer ion ice ID ice category	Comcotec S Comcotec G Demo Gene 1.0 87334 2365 Demo	terilisator mbH ric			Process dat Begin End Duration State Charge No. Program	a 02/06/2015 0 02/06/2015 0 01:23:34 Cycle comple D000000 P1 134" Fest	4:20:00 5:43:34 ted e Güter		Release Process Product Release Release
)		Compa Unicen 100- 1950- 1950- 1950- 1950-	ny sed Record		Info Dev Mar Typ Ven Dev Cyc Dev	mation ce Name ufacturer con ce ID e ce category	Concotec S Concotec O Demo Gene 1.0 87334 2365 Demo	terilisator mbH ric			Process dal Begin End Duration State Charge No. Program	a 02/06/2015 0 01/23/2015 0 01/23/2 00/06/2015 0 01/23/2 00/06/2015 0 01/23/2 00/06/2015 0 01/23/2 00/06/2015 0 01/23/2 00/2015 0 01/23/2 01/2015 0 01/23/2 00/2015 0 01/23/2 00/2015 0 01/23/2 00/2015 0 01/23/2 0 01/23/2 00/2015 0 01/23/2 0 01/23/2 0 00/2015 0 0 00/2015 0 0 01/23/2 0 0 00/2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	4:20:00 5:43:34 :ted e Gitter		Releas Proces: Product Release Release

The user can check that the signature is valid and has not be changed or corrupted. If a signature is valid, "Signature is valid" is displayed.

🔁 dem	no.pdf - Adobe Reader
File	Edit View Window Help
J	🔁 🖉 🏟 🖹 🖨 🖂 📄 💽 1 / 25 📄 🕀 64.4%
i	This file claims compliance with the PDF/A standard and has been opened read-only to pre-
C	Signatures
Ø	
	😑 🚭 Rev. 1: Signed by Lamine Specimen
4g	Signature is valid:
1	Document has not been modified since this signature was applied
	Signature is valid, but revocation of the signer's identity could not be checked
	Signing time is from the clock on the signer's computer.
	Signature is not LTV enabled and will expire after 2017/05/28 17:00:00 -07'00'
	Last Checked: 2015.06.08 02:22:53 -07'00'
	Field: Signature (invisible signature)
	Click to view this version

To check that the certificate is from the trusted source, the properties of the certificate can be compared with the trusted certificate: Signature information -> Certificate details \rightarrow Details tab:

ertificate Viewer	_	_	_	_	-	-	×
This dialog allows you to view to correspond to the selected ent chains were issued by a trust an Show all certification paths for	t he details t ry. Multip nchor.	of a certifi le issuance	icate and chains ar	ts entire is e being dis	suance cha played bec	in. The detail ause none of	s the
Comcotec Root CA (2013	Summa	y Details	Revocati	on Trust	Policies	Legal Notice	
	Certifi	cate <u>d</u> ata: Name	V	alue			*
		Version Signature a Subject Issuer Serial num Validity sta Validity end	ilgori S e ber 0 rts 2 ds 2	HA256 RSA mail=info@ mail=info@ D B3 56 8A I 013/06/23 1 023/06/23 1)segosoft.ir)segosoft.ir F2 04 2E 5F 7:00:00 -07 7:00:00 -07	nfo, c=DE, s nfo, c=DE, s 85 79 '00' '00'	•

Now the displayed values (Applicant, Issued by, Serial number, Validity, SHA256 checksum) can be compared with the printed certificate document:

Company Name Comcote Street Gutenbe Zip 85716 City Unterscl Country German	ec Messtechnik GmbH. Irgstr. 3 nleißheim y (DE)	Ernennung und Einweisung zur Beauftragten für die Sterilisationsfreigabe	Creation date: 08/06/2015
Hiermit wird der/c erworbenen Sact Freigabeentsche QM festgelegten Die im innerbetrie Unterzeichnete(r)	tie Unterzeichnete(r) ge - und Fachkunde nach idung im Aufbereitungs Kriterien mit sofortiger ' ablichen QM und den re) zur Kenntnis genomm	mäß Ihrer/Seiner abgeschlossenen, beruflichen Ausbildung und/oder du den Empfehlungen des RKI in der aktuell gültigen Fassung damit beauf prozess eigenverantwortlich, gewissenhaft und ordnungsgemäß nach d Wirkung zu übernehmen. Jevanten Validierungsberichten hinterlegten Standardarbeitsanweisunge en, verstanden und diesbezüglich keine weiteren Fragen.	rch den Nachweis der tragt, die en im innerbetrieblichen en hat der/die
Für die Nutzung (Das Passwort, da Zahlen/Buchstab Das Passwort ka Der/die Unterzeic rechtsgültige digi	der Unterschriftsfunktio arf nur dem/der Unterze enkombination dafür zu nn jederzeit durch den/ chnete(r) ist sich bewus tale Signatur leistet, die	n bei der Freigabe wird ein Passwort benötigt. ichneten bekannt sein. Es empfiehlt sich keine leicht zu erratende i verwenden. die Unterzeichnete(n) in der SegoSoft selbst geändert werden. st, dass er/sie im Zuge der Freigabe durch die Eingabe von Benutzernan einer handschriftlichen Unterschrift gleichkommt.	ne und Passwort eine
Zertifikatsinform	ation für Olivia Specin	nen	
Valid from Valid to	03/06/2015 17:00:00 28/05/2017 18:00:00 5D 17 95 73 45 30 C		
Fingerprint SHA1	5D 17 8F 73 A5 39 C 61 EE 75 3A 9A 97 8E A1 6E 3B D5 DE 30 F	C 34 14 DE 3 90 64 E7 04 76 1D 0C 07 D0 9E F0 BC DA	
Fingerprint SHA2 Public key	 CA 7F 8D C0 99 26 A CA 7F 8D C0 99 26 A CA 02 82 01 0A 02 82 01 E1 41 AC 88 8F C DE 2D 5A 63 66 0F 2 OF 22 F5 54 AE F3 A CA B6 64 C9 1A 5B A A9 C3 93 BA C7 52 4 20 79 A2 58 B0 B7 67 FE 94 FA CD 47 F7 7 C1 02 03 01 00 01 	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	5D 05 5A EF 6 4E 2E 6C 75 39 23 BA 3A F1 C D0 2C AD 16 84 E6 32 F7 A6 7E B4 EE F2 E7 9A 44 F1 70 4C 74 78 53 D7 43 29 78 0A 0D 5F
Olivia, Specimen			
Date, Signature		Date, Signature (Owner)	

11 Manufacturer information



Comcotec Messtechnik GmbH Gutenbergstr. 3. 85716 Unterschleißheim Germany

12 Obligation to report

The operator of this software is obliged to report any serious incidents regarding this product to their local competent authority or to the above mentioned manufacturer.